
Town of Camden 
Select Board Meeting 

December 15, 2015 – 6:30 PM 
Washington Street Conference Room 

Select Board meetings are broadcast live on Time Warner Channel 22 
Select Board meetings are web streamed at www.townhallstreams.com/locations/camden-me 

 
1. Call to Order  

 
2. Citizen Comments (for items not on the agenda) 
 
3. Approval of Select Board Minutes of December 8, 2015 

 
4. New Business 

 
A. Approval of Curtis Island Caretaker Agreement 
 

Background:   The Town acquired Curtis Island as a public park in 1973.  The Town 
has been fortunate to have volunteer caretakers who provide caretaking services 
from April 15 to October 31 each year.  The caretakers are responsible for 
maintaining trails on the Island, removing dead wood which obstructs the use of 
the Island, mowing grass, removing rubbish, and keeping the buildings and 
premises in good repair and condition.  For more than 35 years, the Conover family 
have been the volunteer caretakers of Curtis Island.  The purpose of this item it to 
renew the 3-year Caretaker Agreement with the Conovers through 2018.   
 

B. Sale of Tax Acquired Property located at 6 Gosses Hill Road to Midcoast Habitat for 
Humanity  

 
Background:   This property was acquired by the Town due to non-payment of 
taxes.  The Select Board discussed selling this parcel at meetings on October 6 and 
October 27.  The Board discussed whether this property could be an opportunity to 
build an affordable home for a family.  The Board decided to contact Midcoast 
Habitat for Humanity to see if they would be interested in building a home on this 
property.   After doing their due diligence on the property, Midcoast Habitat has 
expressed an interest in acquiring the property, removing the dilapidated building, 
and building a home for an eligible family.    
 

C. Public Hearing on application of Stuart Smith, d/b/a Bay View Street Inn at 16 Bay 
View Street for a Special Amusement Permit 
 

D. Approval of application from Dante Murray to use the Village Green on December 
23rd from 5pm – 6pm for Christmas caroling 

 
E. Approval of 2016 Select Board Meeting Calendar 

 
5. Communications, Presentations, and Recognitions 

 
A. Presentation of Work Group report regarding a noise ordinance   

(Informational only – no action) 
 

http://www.townhallstreams.com/locations/camden-me


Background:  A Work Group comprised of Planning Board member John Scholz, 
Police Chief Randy Gagne, and Dennis McGuirk has researched noise ordinances, 
existing conditions, and issues related to noise.  John Scholz will officially deliver 
the Work Group’s report to the Select Board for discussion at a future meeting.  
 

 
 

6. Select Board Member Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
7. Town Manager Report 

 
 
Adjourn 
 

***  Break *** 
 
 
Workshop 
 
Meet with the Town Attorney to discuss several items including: 
   

A. Secret Ballot Questions (information allowed on the ballot)  

B. Paper Streets  

C. Personal property taxes 

D. Requirements regarding the Americans with Disability Act (ADA) 

 

 

 
*** *** 

 

 

Upcoming meetings:  

Mon. Jan, 4:  Workshop with the Lincolnville Select Board (Lincolnville) 

Tues. Jan. 5:  Select Board Meeting 

Tues. Jan. 19: Workshop with Rockport Select Board (Rockport) 

Tues. Jan. 19: Select Board Meeting 

 

 

HHHaaappppppyyy   HHHooollliiidddaaayyysss!!!   
 



1 

 

Town of Camden 
Select Board Meeting 

December 8, 2015  
 

Minutes 
 

Present:  Select Board Chair John French and Select Board Members Don White, Leonard 
Lookner, Martin Cates and James Heard, and Town Manager, Pat Finnigan. Also present were 
members of the public. 

 
1. Call to Order  

 
Chair John French opened the meeting at 6:30 p.m. and called upon the Town Manager.  The 
Manager noted the sudden passing of William “Fitzy” Fitzcharles on Thanksgiving evening.  
She said that Fitzy had served the Town well for 10 years; he was a dedicated employee and 
his work had made Camden a better community for which we all should be grateful.  The 
Board then held a moment of silence for Fitzy and his family. 

 
2. Communications, Presentations, and Recognitions 
 

Geoff Scott, Chair of the Pathways Committee, reported on the completion of the second 
section of the Riverwalk which stretches along the River from Mt. Battie St. to the Seabright 
Dam.  Geoff commended all the people who worked on the project including the Maine 
Conservation Corps, Parks & Recreation Department, the Public Works crew, the Pathways 
Committee and other volunteers, and the Select Board. 
 
Mr. Lookner commended the Pathways Committee, with special recognition to Geoff Scott 
and Anita Brosius Scott, for their persistence and years of work to make the Riverwalk a 
reality.  He and Jim Heard said they had walked along the newest section of the path and were 
very pleased with how it had turned out.  They said it was a real community asset. 
 
Mr. Scott said the next phase of the project would be from Knowlton St to the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant.  He asked the Select Board to support applying for a grant to fund the next 
section of the Riverwalk and to authorize the staff to submit a grant application.  The Board 
said they had authorized the grant previously, but would reaffirm their support.  Don White 
made a motion, seconded by James Heard to reaffirm the Board’s prior support and 
authorization to apply for a grant to help fund the next phase of the Riverwalk.  The motion 
passed unanimously.  
 

3. Citizen Comments  
 

No citizens wished to make any statements.  
 
Select Board member Don White had several comments including:  

• Thanked and complimented the volunteers and participants of the Christmas by the 
Sea holiday celebration on Dec. 4 through 5; 

• Reminded people that there is a winter parking ban in effect until April 
• Requested that people be considerate of other walkers and scoop up after their pets; 
• Encouraged drivers to be aware of pedestrians after it gets dark, in order to keep 

everyone safe. 



2 

 

Chair John French said that he had been contacted by the Pathways Committee regarding a 
list of sidewalks that need maintenance and repair.  He wanted the Select Board to know that 
he had told Geoff Scott, Chair of the Pathways Committee, that he would support funding for 
those sidewalks in the FY17 budget.  
 

4. Approval of Select Board Minutes of November 10, 2015 
 

Martin Cates made a motion to approve the Minutes.  The motion was seconded by Don 
White.  The motion passed 5-0.   

 
5. Select Board Member Reports 
 

Donald White reported on the following:  
• The Tannery Committee had met earlier that day.  The group had elected Roger Moody  

as the group leader; 
• The Historic Resources Committees is working on establishing an historic district on 

Bayview St 
• The Opera House is in the midst of its annual fundraising appeal.  There will be a Family 

Film series starting in January 
 
Leonard Lookner said that he heard from people concerns about litter in the downtown and the 
lack of trash cans.  He requested having trash cans in appropriate locations.  He also said that 
Laite Beach needed trash cans to help pet owners.    
 
Martin Cates reported that he had met with Rockport Select Board member Owen Cassas to 
discuss joint efforts regarding parks and recreation facilities and programs.  He said this was in 
response to the charge they received form the Joint Select Board meeting in November to explore 
ways promote recreational opportunities, fully use the facilities we have, and inventory existing 
facilities and programs, and identify additional; programming or facilities that would benefit the 
community. He said they are working on as joint committee modeled similar to the Pathways 
Committee.   

 
6. Town Manager Report 
 

The Town Manager thanked everyone who worked to make the Christmas by the Sea 
weekend such a success.  She noted that Parker Laite had the idea of  having a banner hung 
on a fire truck that was a simple message of “Thank you” to Charles Cawley who had recently 
died.  She said Mr. Cawley had made many contributions to our community but never wanted 
any recognition, but she didn’t think he would object to this simple expression of thanks.   

 
7. New Business 
 
A. Consideration of the 2016 Harbor Fees recommended by the Harbor Committee 

(Harbor Ordinance Article IV Section 1)    
 
Harbor Master Steve Pixley said the Harbor Committee had recommended the 2016 Harbor 
fees unanimously.  He said the fees remained the same except for an increase in the non-
resident mooring fee for boats over 30’.  
 
James Heard made a motion to approve the 2016 Harbor Fees recommended by the Harbor 
Committee. The motion was seconded by Donald White.  The motion passed 5-0. 



3 

 

B. Consideration of 2016 Commercial Fishermen’s Float Permit Applications (Harbor 
Ordinance Article V  Section 2) 
 
Harbor Master Steve Pixley reported that the Town had received 11 applications from 
commercial fishermen: 10 renewals and 1 new applicant. 
 
James Heard made a motion to approve the 2016 Commercial Fishermen’s Float Permit 
Applications.    Leonard Lookner  seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0.  

 
C. Consideration of the 2016 Daysailer Licenses (Harbor Ordinance Article V Section 

 
Harbor Master Steve Pixley reported that the Town had received application renewals from 4 
Daysailer Captains to dock 5 boats at the Camden public dock.  He said the Captains had all 
worked together and agreed to the schedule for 2016.  
 
Donald White made a motion to approve the 2016 Daysailer Licenses.  James Heard        
seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0.  
 

D. Bid Award:  Wastewater Department 2500 HD Truck 
 

Town Manager Finnigan reported that the Town had received two bids.  One from O’Conner 
GMC and one form Quirk Chevrolet.  She said the bids were very close with only a $2 
difference, however, the low bid did not meet all specifications.  Therefore, staff 
recommended awarding the bid to O’Connor GMC for a 2016 GMC/Chevrolet 2500HD 
 
Donald White  made a motion to award the bid for a 2016 GMC/Chevrolet 2500HD to 
O’Connor GMC in the amount of $34,300.     James Heard seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed 5-0. 

 
E. Bid Award Parks & Recreation/Snow Bowl Utility Terrain Vehicle 

 
Parks and Recreation Director/Snow Bowl General Manager Landon Fake reported that the 
Town had received two bids for this 4-season, all terrain utility vehicle which can be operated 
on land and in the snow.    Staff recommended awarding the bid to Power Equipment Plus of 
Sidney bid in the amount of $21,740. Which included arts o meet the manufacturer’s 
warranty and power steering.   
 
Donald White made a motion to award the bid for a 2015 Polaris XP 900 UTV to Power 
Equipment Plus of Sidney in the amount of $21,740.   James Heard seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 

F. Vote to nominate one member to the Municipal Review Committee (MRC) Board  
 

The Town Manager reported that MRC, the organization that represents 187 municipalities 
including Camden, Rockport, Hope and Lincolnville regarding solid waste management and 
disposal, has a nine member Board.  Each member town is allowed to cast one vote to elect 
the Board Members.   She said that Jim Guerra, Manager of  Mid-Coast Solid Waste,  suggested 
supporting the re-election of Karen Fussell (the Finance Director of Brewer and Chair of the 
MRC’s Communications Committee).   
 
James Heard made a motion to cast a vote for Karen Fussell of Brewer to the MRC Board. 
Martin Cates seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0. 



4 

 

G. Consideration of renewal victualers licenses for the following: 
 
1) Francine Bistro at 55 Chestnut Street for a victualers license 
 
Leonard Lookner recused himself from this vote because he owns the property.   
 
Donald White made a motion to approve the victualers licenses for Francine Bistro and 
Mike’s Catering.  Martin Cates seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0-1  
 
2) French & Brawn, d/b/a Mikes Catering at the Camden Snow Bowl for a victualers license 

 
Don White made a motion to approve the victualers licenses for Francine Bistro and Mike’s 
Catering.   James Heard seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0  

 
Adjournment. Martin Cates made a motion to adjourn as the Select Board and convene as the 
Board of Assessors.  The motion was seconded by James Hears.  The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Board of Assessors.   The Board convened as the Board of Assessors considered the following 
abatement requests for the year 2015-2016 in the amount of  $2,992.71. 

 
RE 3323 Neillehaven   $727.75 
Assessment Error – development Restrictions 

 
RE 3281  107 Start Road $340.43 
Assessment Error – deed restrictions 

 
 RE 1918 Millay Road  $1,519.05 
 Assessment Error – development restrictions 
 

RE 3237 2 Lupine Lane $405.48 
Assessment Error – unrecognized AHP 

 
Don White made a motion to approve property tax abatements as recommended by the Assessors 
Agent.  James Heard seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0. 
 
The Board considered the following requests for a Supplemental Tax Warrant  for personal 
property taxes for the year 2015-2016 in the amount of $160.38: 

 
PP 472 – Townhouse Estates I - $95.32 
Assessment Error:  mistakenly removed 

 
PP 473 – Townhouse Estates II - $65.06 
Assessment Error:  mistakenly removed 

 
 Martin Cates made a motion to approve personal property tax abatements as recommended by the 
Assessors Agent.  James Heard seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Adjourn.  The Board then made a motion to go adjourn and go into Executive Session as the 
Select Board pursuant to Title 1 MRSA section 405.6.E.  The motion was made by James Heard 
and seconded by Martin Cates.  The motion passed 5-0.   



1 

 

Curtis Island Caretaker Agreement 
 

This Agreement made and entered into this 15th day of December, 2015, by 

and between the Town of Camden, a municipal corporation with principal 

offices in Camden, Knox County, Maine (hereinafter "the Town"), and Dianne 

Conover and David G. Conover, of Knox County, Maine (hereinafter the 

"Caretaker"). 

 

WHEREAS, the Caretaker is willing to provide basic caretaking services with 

regard to the maintenance of Curtis Island (hereinafter the “Island”), from April 

15 to October 31 for the term of this Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town is willing to permit the Caretaker to have the exclusive 

use of the buildings on the premises of the Island from April 15 to October 31 

for the term of this Agreement, as consideration for the provision of caretaking 

services; and  

 

WHEREAS, both the Caretaker and the Town have mutually agreed that the 

use of the Island for the duration of the term of this Agreement shall conform 

to the purposes and restrictions contained in the Application for Federal 

Surplus Property for Public Park or Recreational Purposes by which the Town 

acquired the Island; and  

 

WHEREAS, both parties to this Agreement understand that the Caretaker will 

be acting as an Agent of the Town in the provision of caretaking services on the 

Island;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

contained herein, and pursuant to the provisions set forth herein, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 

 

The Caretaker shall provide caretaking services for the maintenance and 

upkeep of the buildings and premises on Curtis Island, Camden Harbor, 

Maine, which said Curtis Island consists of approximately 5.94 acres of land 

with a 1½ story building and a 1½ story storage building, both of which are 

wooden framed, together with a brick oil storage building.  The Caretaker 

agrees to provide the following caretaking services from April 15 to October 31 

for the term of this Agreement: 

 

 



2 

 

 

1. Mowing of grass on the Island; 

2. Removal of rubbish; 

3. Protection of the buildings on the Island; 

4. Provision of renovations necessary to maintain the premises on the 

Island in good repair and condition; 

5. Maintenance of trails on the Island; 

6. Removal of dead wood which would obstruct the use of the trails or 

other facilities on the Island; and  

7. Enforcement of Town rules and regulations, and prompt 

notification to the Town Manager of any problems which occur 

with reference to such rules and regulations. 

  
IN CONSIDERATION, of the provision of caretaking services by the Caretaker, 

the Town agrees to permit the Caretaker to have exclusive use of any buildings 

presently existing on the Island.  It is expressly agreed by and between the 

parties hereto that the general public shall not have access to any building on 

the Island during the term of this Agreement.  The general public shall, 

however, be permitted to use any portion of the Island, except for the buildings 

on the Island, from dawn to sunset of each day during the term of this 

Agreement. 

 

THE TERM of this Agreement shall be for three (3) years, from December 1, 
2015 through November 30, 2018.   
 

THIS AGREEMENT is expressly made subject to the terms, conditions and 

requirements set forth in deeds from the United States of America to the 

Inhabitants of the Town of Camden, Maine dated September 18, 1973 recorded 

in the Knox County Registry of Deeds Book 553, Page 40 and dated July 9, 

1998 recorded in the Knox County Registry of Deeds Book 2259, Page 288, a 

copy of which has been provided to the Caretaker. 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT between the Town and the Caretaker is expressly made 

subject to any restrictions and limitations contained in an Application for 

Federal Surplus Property for Public Park or Recreational Purposes.  It is 

expressly understood between the parties hereto that nothing contained in this 

Agreement shall, in any way, conflict with the conditions and restrictions in 

said Application. To the extent that there is any conflict between the provisions 



3 

 

of this Agreement and the conditions and restrictions in said Application, the 

provisions of this Agreement which are in such conflict shall be null and void, 

but invalidation of any provision of this Agreement in consequence of such a 

conflict shall, in no way, invalidate any other provision of this Agreement in 

consequence of such a conflict shall, in no way, invalidate any other provisions 

of this Agreement which do not conflict with the conditions and restrictions in  

said Application. 

 

BOTH PARTIES to this Agreement expressly agree that any removable 
improvements or additions placed on the Island by the Caretaker during the 

term of this Agreement shall be removable at the expiration or termination of 
this Agreement.  At such expiration or termination, the Caretaker shall, at his 
sole discretion, either remove any removable improvements or additions or 

receive reimbursement from the Town for the value of such removable 
improvements or additions. 

 
THIS AGREEMENT may be terminated by either party for cause, upon written 

notice given at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such 
termination.  Said written notice shall be given by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, to each party at the following address: 

 
 Town of Camden   Dianne Conover  
 Municipal Offices   David G. Conover 

 PO Box 1207   26 Sea Street, PO Box 814 
 Camden, Maine  04843  Camden, Maine  04843 

  
Said written notice shall state the specific reason or reasons for such 
termination. 

 
THE TOWN agrees to maintain the same liability insurance coverage on 

property located on the Island as presently exists.  The Caretaker agrees to 
maintain insurance coverage for the contents of any building on the Island 
used by the Caretaker as a residence. 

 
IT IS EXPRESSLY AGREED by and between the parties hereto that the Town 

Manager of the Town of Camden shall have the right, at any time during the 
term of this Agreement, to inspect the premises subject to this Agreement. 

 
THE CARETAKER agrees to make minor repairs to the dock and wooden walk 
leading from the dock on the Island as may be occasioned by damage which 

would be dangerous to members of the public in the absence of such 
immediate repair.  Upon discovery of such conditions, the Caretaker agrees to 
make said minor repairs, or to notify the Town concerning the need for such 

repairs in the event that rectification of such conditions requires major repairs. 
 
 
 



4 

 

 
THIS AGREEMENT shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties 

hereto.  It is expressly understood by the Town and by the Caretaker that this 
Agreement does not constitute a lease of the premises to the Caretaker.  It is 

understood by the parties hereto that the description of the property set forth 
above is believed to be correct.  Any error or omission in said description shall 
not constitute grounds or reason for the non-performance of this Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on December 

15, 2015.  

     

Town of Camden, by its Select Board 
 

 
       
John R. French, Jr., Chairperson 

Camden Select Board 
 
      

Donald White, Vice-Chairperson 
 

 
      
Martin Cates 

 
 

        
James Heard 
 

 
        
Leonard Lookner 

 
        

 
 
Caretaker 
 
        

Dianne Conover 
 
 

        
David G. Conover 
 

 
 

 



5 

 

 
 

 
 

 
STATE OF MAINE 
COUNTY OF KNOX, ss.    Date:        

 
 Then personally appeared before me the above named John R. French, 
Jr., Donald White, Martin Cates, James Heard, and Leonard Lookner and 

acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be their free act and deed in said 
capacity as Select Board members, and the free act and deed of the body 

corporate. 
 
Commission Expires:           

       Notary Public 
 

 
              
       Printed Name of Notary 

 
 
STATE OF MAINE 

COUNTY OF KNOX, ss.    Date:       
  

 
 
 Then personally appeared before me the above named Dianne Conover 

and David G. Conover and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be their 
free act and deed. 
 

              
Commission Expires:     Notary Public 

 
 
              

       Printed Name of Notary 































 2016
          CAMDEN SELECT BOARD

    SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS
 

  JANUARY  FEBRUARY     MARCH
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
   X 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 X 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
17 X 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 27 28 29 30 31
31  

  APRIL     MAY     JUNE
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
17 X 19 20 21 22 23 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 26 27 28 29 30  

29 X 31  

    JULY     AUGUST SEPTEMBER
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6  1 2 3
3 X 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 X 6 7 8 9 10
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30
31   

 OCTOBER    NOVEMBER  DECEMBER
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

   1 1 2 3 4 5  1 2 3
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 X 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
9 X 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 X X 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 25 X 27 28 29 30  
30 31     

= Select Board Meetings   Annual Town Meeting:     June 14-15-2016
 

Special Town Meeting:  November 8, 2016  

X = Holidays (Town Offices Closed)
January 1  New Year's Day September 5 Labor Day
January 18               Martin Luther King Jr. Day October 10 Columbus Day
February 15 President's Day November 11 Veterans Day
April 18 Patriots Day                                                        November 24 Thanksgiving Day
May 30 Memorial Day November 25 Thanksgiving Friday
July 4 Independence Day December 26 Christmas Day

     












































	Select Board Agenda 12.15.15
	Select Board Minutes 12.08.15
	NEW BUSINESS
	4(a) Approval of Curtis Island Caretaker Agreement 
	Curtis Island Report
	4(b) Sale of Tax Acquired Property
	4(c) Special Amusement Permit
	4(d) Approval of Village Green application
	4(e) Approval of Select Board Meeting Calendar
	COMMUNICATIONS
	5a. Presentation of Workgroup for Noise Ordinance
	12-15-15 Agenda.pdf
	Town of Camden
	Select Board Meeting


